

**STANISLAUS COUNTY
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD**

BYLAWS

**ARTICLE I
NAME**

The name of this body shall be the Stanislaus County Workforce Development Board. Whenever the term "Board" is used in these Bylaws, it shall mean the Stanislaus County Workforce Development Board.

**ARTICLE II
AUTHORITY**

Stanislaus County's authority to form this Board is based in the federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014, Public Law 113-128 ("WIOA"), and the state California Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act, California Unemployment Insurance Code section 14000 et seq.

**ARTICLE III
PURPOSE**

The purpose of the Board shall be to carry out job training and employment programs, and to set policy for the workforce development system in the local Workforce Development Area of Stanislaus County, in coordination with statewide workforce development efforts and consistent with the federal WIOA, as amended, in order to: (i) attract greater employer participation in all aspects of local employment and training activities; (ii) increase the employment, retention, and earnings of customers/participants; (iii) increase the occupational skill attainment by customers/participants; (iv) improve the quality of the workforce, reduce dependency on social services, and enhance the productivity and competitiveness of the local Workforce Development Area; (v) actively participate in convening workforce development system stakeholders, brokering relationships with a diverse range of employers, and leveraging support for workforce development activities; and (vi) to accept donations and to otherwise actively apply for, seek, and accept funding, including from local, state, and federal sources, for this purpose.

**ARTICLE IV
MEMBERSHIP**

The County Board of Supervisors, as the chief local elected official in Stanislaus County, is authorized to appoint the members of the Board. Members of the Board shall serve without compensation but shall receive reimbursement for their actual expenses consistent with the policies of Stanislaus County.

**STANISLAUS COUNTY
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD**

BYLAWS

Members of the Board that represent organizations, agencies, or other entities shall be individuals with optimum policymaking authority within the organizations, agencies, or entities. The members of the Board shall represent diverse geographic areas within Stanislaus County. The Board shall consist of no more than twenty-eight (28) members with no limit on number of terms served, be consistent with Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) regulations, as it may be amended from time to time, and meet the following requirements:

1. Business Representatives. (4 year term) A majority (i.e., at least 51%) of the members of the Board, including the Board Chair, shall consist of representatives of Stanislaus County's private business sector and:

- A. Be an owner, chief executive officer, chief operating officer, or other individual with optimum policy-making or hiring authority; and
- B. Provide employment opportunities in in-demand industry sectors or occupations, as those terms are defined in WIOA sec. 3(23).

2. Workforce Representatives. (4 year term) No less than twenty percent (20%) of the members of the Board shall consist of the workforce within the local area, who shall be:

- A. Representatives of labor organizations, who have been nominated by local labor federations, and a Representative, who shall be a member of a labor organization or a training director, from a joint labor-management apprenticeship program. If no such joint program exists in the area, such a representative may be from a state-approved apprenticeship program in the area, if such a program exists. These representatives shall amount to not less than 15 percent of local board membership;
- B. May be representatives of community-based organizations that have demonstrated experience and expertise in addressing the employment needs of individuals with barriers to employment, including organizations that serve veterans or that provide or support competitive integrated employment for individuals with disabilities;
- C. May be representatives of organizations that have demonstrated experience and expertise in addressing the employment, training, or education needs of eligible youth, including representatives of organizations that serve out-of-school youth.

**STANISLAUS COUNTY
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD**

BYLAWS

3. Education/Training Representatives. (4 year term) The Board shall include members who are representatives of entities administering education and training activities in Stanislaus County, which:

- A. Shall include a representative of eligible providers administering adult education and literacy activities under title II of WIOA ("Adult Education Representatives");
- B. Shall include a representative of institutions of higher education, including community colleges, providing workforce investment activities;
- C. May include representatives of local educational agencies, and of community-based organizations with demonstrated experience and expertise in addressing the education or training needs of individuals with barriers to employment

4. Economic/Community Development Representatives. (4 year term) The Board shall include members who are representatives of governmental and economic and community development entities serving Stanislaus County who:

- A. Shall include a representative of economic and community development entities;
- B. Shall include an appropriate representative from the State employment service office under the Wagner-Peyser Act serving Stanislaus County;
- C. Shall include an appropriate representative of the programs carried out under title I of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 serving Stanislaus County;
- D. May include representatives of philanthropic organizations serving Stanislaus County.

5. Other Representatives. (2 year term) The Board may include such other individuals or representatives of entities that the Stanislaus Board of Supervisors, as the local chief elected official in Stanislaus County, determines to be appropriate and as is consistent with WIOA.

**ARTICLE V
OFFICERS**

The Officers of the Board shall be a Chair, a Vice Chair, and a Secretary. Only members of the Board may be Officers. Each Office shall have a term of two (2) years. Officers shall be elected at a regular meeting of the Board. The

**STANISLAUS COUNTY
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD**

BYLAWS

Chair of the Board shall, if present, preside at meetings of the Board and exercise and perform such other powers and duties as may be from time to time assigned to the Chair by the Board or prescribed by these Bylaws.

In the absence or disability of the Chair, the Vice Chair shall perform all the duties of the Chair, and when so acting shall have all the powers of, and be subject to all the restrictions upon, the Chair. The Vice Chair shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as from time to time may be prescribed by the Board or these Bylaws.

The Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept a book of minutes of all meetings and actions of the Board. The Secretary shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all meetings of the Board and of committees of the Board. At the Board's discretion, the Secretary may delegate the responsibilities contained in this paragraph to Stanislaus County Workforce Development staff.

**ARTICLE VI
MEETINGS**

The Board shall establish a regular meeting time and place. The Board may, through public notification, call for special meetings it deems necessary.

At all meetings of the Board, the Board shall comply with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Gov. Code § 54950 et seq.), and the provisions of the California Public Records Act (Gov. Code § 6250 et seq.), as either or both may be amended from time to time.

A member with three (3) consecutive unexcused absences from meetings is considered resigned from the Board.

A member may participate in Board meetings via other technologies if he or she is unable to attend the meeting physically. Such technologies may include teleconference and/or web-based meeting tools, that must be used to promote Board member participation.

**ARTICLE VII
COMMITTEES**

The Board may designate and direct the activities of standing advisory committees to provide information and to assist the Board in carrying out workforce development activities. Such standing advisory committees shall be chaired by a member of the Board, may include other members of the Board,

**STANISLAUS COUNTY
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD**

BYLAWS

and shall include other individuals appointed by the Board who are not members of the Board and who the Board determines have appropriate experience and expertise. The Board may delegate the Committee Chair to add and/or remove committee members as necessary. This will relieve the Board of the administrative burden should members miss multiple meetings or choose to leave the committee, and allow the committee to replace members as needed. At a minimum, the Board may designate each of the following:

1. One-Stop Operations. A standing advisory committee to provide information and assist with operational and other issues relating to the One-Stop Delivery System, which may include as members representatives of the One-Stop Partners.

2. Youth Services. A standing advisory committee to provide information and to assist with planning, operational, and other issues relating to the provision of services to youth, which shall include community-based organizations with a demonstrated record of success in serving eligible youth.

3. Individuals with Disabilities. A standing advisory committee to provide information and to assist with operational and other issues relating to the provision of services to individuals with disabilities, including issues regarding providing programmatic and physical access to the services, programs, and activities of the One-Stop Delivery System, as well as appropriate training for staff on providing supports for or accommodations to, and finding employment opportunities for, individuals with disabilities.

4. Other Committees. The Board may designate other standing advisory committees in addition to the standing committees specified above.

**ARTICLE VIII
QUORUM AND VOTING**

The meetings of the Board shall be conducted in accordance with Robert's Rules of Order and the Brown Act. A majority of the current membership of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of any and all business duly presented at a meeting of the Board. Every action taken or decision made by a majority of the members present at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board. The Board shall not permit absentee or proxy voting at any of its meetings.

**STANISLAUS COUNTY
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD**

BYLAWS

**ARTICLE IX
VACANCIES**

Vacancies on the Board shall exist upon the death, resignation, or removal of any member, and whenever the number of authorized members is increased. Any member may resign from the Board by giving written notice to the Chair of the Board or to the Stanislaus County Board of Supervisors. Vacancies on the Board shall be filled by the Stanislaus County Board of Supervisors.

**ARTICLE X
CONFLICT OF INTEREST**

Members of the Board are deemed to be Public Officials pursuant to the Political Reform Act, and are subject to the provisions of that Act, the regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission, and Government Code section 1090 et seq., as any or all may be amended from time to time. Furthermore, members of the Board shall be subject to the Stanislaus County Workforce Development's Conflict of Interest Policy and Code of Conduct, and annually shall file a Statement of Economic Interest as required under that Code.

**ARTICLE XI
AMENDMENTS**

These Bylaws may be amended, repealed, or altered, in whole or in part, by the approval of the Stanislaus County Board of Supervisors. A recommendation to amend, repeal, or alter these Bylaws, in whole or in part, may be made by a majority vote of the Board members present at any duly held meeting of the Board, provided that a copy of any amendment proposed for consideration shall be provided to each member of the Board at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of the meeting at which such vote shall be held. These Bylaws, and any amendments to these Bylaws, shall take effect only upon approval by the Stanislaus County Board of Supervisors.

Revised: November 24, 2020
Revised: May 15, 2018
Revised: June 7, 2016
Created: April 5, 2016